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          2                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Good morning

          3  everyone, and welcome to this meeting on the New

          4  York City Council's Committee on Contracts.  Today

          5  is what, Monday, December 13th, Happy Holidays

          6  everyone, just in case I don't say it to you later.

          7  I hope that you and your families have a healthy,

          8  happy, and prosperous holiday season, and a great

          9  2005.

         10                 My name is Robert Jackson, I Chair

         11  this Committee. This morning we will be considering

         12  Intro. No. 459, a bill that would require that the

         13  City of New York to track and report all its

         14  purchases of wood, and wood alternative products in

         15  an effort to identify and monitor the nature and

         16  impact of these purchases. It is well known that

         17  healthy forests play a vital role in the world's

         18  environment.  Forests containing at least half of

         19  the world's animals and plants species that produce

         20  food and medicine.  Further it is now well settled

         21  that the climate is directly linked to the health of

         22  the world's forests.

         23                 Dangerous and dramatic climate change

         24  caused by deforestation, and the build up of

         25  greenhouse gases are the subject of great concern in
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          2  the world today.  Yet, there are still areas in the

          3  world where forests are being irresponsibly, and

          4  many times illegally damaged or destroyed in the

          5  name of profit.  Making matters worse, along with

          6  the destruction of these forests comes the

          7  destruction of indigenous populations and their

          8  cultures.

          9                 New Yorkers do not want to contribute

         10  to such destruction.  However, New York City uses a

         11  great deal of wood for projects ranging from the

         12  walkway on the Brooklyn Bridge to Park benches

         13  throughout the City, including City Hall Park.  And

         14  many of these benches and walkways are made of wood

         15  harvested from tropical forests, such as the Amazon.

         16    There are many ways of obtaining wood from forests

         17  without destroying them or the surrounding

         18  population.

         19                 Sustainable foresting or harvesting

         20  trees in a way that prevent the destruction of the

         21  forest is at the heart of the bill that we will be

         22  discussing today.  Specifically, this bill would

         23  help us understand the impact of wood purchases we

         24  make. It would require the City to report on all its

         25  wood and recycled plastic number purchases, and it
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          2  would also require the City regarding wood purchases

          3  to determine and report whether the wood originated

          4  in a responsibly managed forest.

          5                 The bill and its purposes are simple.

          6    The more we know about the wood we purchase, the

          7  more we can gage the impact of these purchases on

          8  this dwindling, natural resource, and on human

          9  beings.

         10                 We will first hear from the

         11  Department of Citywide Administrative Services, but

         12  before we do that I would like to read to you a

         13  statement from Council Member Jim Gennaro who is the

         14  prime sponsor of this Intro.  And Jim would have

         15  been here himself, but if you don't know, and many

         16  of you know that Jim's father recently passed away

         17  last week, and so he is still in the grieving

         18  process.  So I will read his statement.

         19                  "Thank you Chairman Jackson and the

         20  entire Committee on Contracts for hearing Intro. No.

         21  459.  I also thank Speaker Miller for joining me as

         22  a prime sponsor of this legislation.

         23                 I apologize that personal matters

         24  prevent me from attending this morning's hearing.

         25  New York City is the greatest city in the world, it
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          2  is also increasingly asserting itself as an

          3  environmental leader.  It is clear then, that by no

          4  means, should the City of New York be supporting

          5  environmentally destructive practices.

          6                 Healthy forests are vital components

          7  of our environment.  They clean the air we breathe,

          8  and keep the water we drink pure.  Forests are home

          9  to half of the world's biodiversity and are one of

         10  our best hedges against global warming pollution.

         11                 Healthy forests are also critically

         12  economic resources serving as economic backbones of

         13  countless communities throughout the world.

         14  Nonetheless, wood is all too frequently harvested

         15  from forests in a reckless manner, such as through

         16  clear- cut logging or other unsustainable practices.

         17    When this occurs the ecological economic, as well

         18  as cultural and aesthetic values of healthy forests

         19  can often be lost forever.

         20                 With a procurement budget of over $9

         21  billion, that is where the City of New York

         22  purchases a good services and construction, the City

         23  of New York is one of the largest purchasers of wood

         24  products in the United States.  Clearly, as a great

         25  city and as an environmental leader, the City of New
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          2  York should ensure that these purchases do not

          3  support environmentally destructive forest

          4  practices.  This is where Intro. 459, the

          5  legislation being heard this morning can help.

          6                 Intro. 459 would require the periodic

          7  reporting of specific information on the wood

          8  products being procured by the City agencies or its

          9  contractors.  Such reporting should assist the City

         10  to better track its wood product purchases, and take

         11  steps necessary to ensure this wood has been

         12  harvested in an environmentally responsible manner.

         13                 The bill would also require reporting

         14  of the City's use of recycled plastic lumber, thus

         15  assisting the City to better track the use of this

         16  environmentally beneficial wood substitute.

         17                 Again, I thank Chairman Jackson and

         18  the Contracts Committee for holding today's hearing,

         19  and Speaker Miller for joining me as a prime sponsor

         20  of it.  I look forward to working with this

         21  Committee to assist the City in ensuring that wood

         22  purchases support environmentally, friendly

         23  practices and healthy forests."

         24                 This is a statement submitted by

         25  Council Member Jim Gennaro.  And before we hear from
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          2  the first panel, I would like to introduce my

          3  colleague, Doctor Kendall Stewart of Brooklyn, a

          4  member of the Committee.  Good morning, Sir.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  Good

          6  morning, and I am happy to be here this morning.

          7  And I want to wish Happy Hanukkah

          8                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Thank you.  Our

          9  first witness today is Virginia Ross, the Deputy

         10  Commissioner, the New York City Department of

         11  Administrative Services.  Good morning, and welcome.

         12    Deputy Commissioner Ross, would you just state

         13  your name and title for the record, and you can

         14  begin your testimony.

         15                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ROSS:  I am

         16  Virginia Ross, I am Deputy Commissioner of the

         17  Division of Municipal Supplies for the Department of

         18  Citywide Administrative Services.  Good morning.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Good morning.

         20                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ROSS:  Good

         21  morning, Chairman Jackson.  I am here this morning

         22  to provide comments on Intro. 459, the City

         23  Council's proposed law to amend the City's

         24  Administrative Code regarding the purchase and use

         25  of wood and recycled plastic lumber.  The Bloomberg
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          2  Administration is committed to using recycled

          3  products whenever practicable. Vendors are

          4  encouraged through the use of financial incentives

          5  to provide products made from recycled material

          6  whenever this is a viable alternative.

          7                 In the case of wood and wood

          8  products, it has been the City's experience that

          9  recycled plastic lumber may be a useful alternative

         10  in particular instances, such as in pier and

         11  bulkhead repair, or for park benches, as long as its

         12  use consistently provides appropriate support and

         13  safety for the public.

         14                 In addition, New York State Finance

         15  Law, Section 165, which covers City contracting,

         16  prohibits the purchase of certain tropical

         17  hardwoods, unless there is no viable alternative.

         18  The City's BID documents include a clause, which

         19  alerts potential bidders to the requirement.

         20  Failure to abide by the terms of the contract may

         21  result in a breech and appropriate penalties may be

         22  assessed.

         23                 Intro. 459 would require DCAS to

         24  provide reports every six months beginning January

         25  1st of 2005 on the purchase and use of wood, wood
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          2  products, and recycled plastic lumber by City

          3  agencies, or in the fulfillment of contracts with

          4  City agencies.  The report would specify the

          5  quantity of each species of wood purchased or used,

          6  the purpose for which the wood was purchased or

          7  used, the location from which the wood was derived,

          8  and information on certifications.  The report would

          9  also include additional information regarding

         10  recycled plastic lumber with the exception that

         11  there would be no certification requirement.

         12                 The production of the report required

         13  by Intro. 459 is nearly impossible for the following

         14  reasons:

         15                 First, City agencies including DCAS

         16  do not have wood experts with the requisite base of

         17  knowledge required to determine various species of

         18  wood.  As a result, the City would have to rely on

         19  information from vendors.  This is further

         20  complicated by the fact that many of our contracts,

         21  perhaps even the majority of our contracts, are with

         22  distributors, not manufacturers of various products.

         23                 Oftentimes the purchase of products

         24  by the City occurs several steps down the economic

         25  ladder.  Consequently, it is likely that many City
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          2  vendors may not know the species of wood utilized in

          3  the products, and the geographic location from which

          4  the wood species was derived.

          5                 Second, neither DCAS nor other City

          6  agencies currently track information as to how wood

          7  or wood products are used.  Wood is contained in

          8  numerous office products purchased regularly by

          9  every City agency.  Additionally, wood has numerous

         10  construction uses besides obvious structural

         11  applications, including forms for cement.  Further,

         12  City contractors may utilize wood in construction

         13  contracts or other contracts without the knowledge

         14  of City agencies.

         15                 Third, all City- wide purchasing

         16  information is not available to DCAS because we do

         17  not do all the purchasing or contracting for the

         18  City of New York.  As you know, each agency can make

         19  small purchases less than $100,000, and most capital

         20  construction contracts are overseen by City agencies

         21  without any involvement by DCAS.

         22                 Fourth, wood is certified by

         23  nationally recognized associations for grade and

         24  quality.  Currently, no formal process exists for

         25  certifying the origin of wood or wood products.
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          2                 The organization mentioned in Intro.

          3  459's legislative findings and intent, the Forest

          4  Stewardship Council may have the expertise to

          5  certify the location from which the wood was

          6  derived.  However, certification by wood suppliers

          7  is purely voluntary.  The Forest Stewardship Council

          8  is not a government entity like the US Department of

          9  Energy which grants energy star certification for

         10  products, or the Environmental Protection Agency,

         11  which provides lists of best available technologies

         12  for reducing noxious vehicle emissions.

         13                 The fact that Intro. 459, if enacted,

         14  would be an unfunded mandate is obvious.  Clearly

         15  the City does not have the personnel or financial

         16  resources to prepare reports of this nature.  To do

         17  so would necessitate hiring additional staff to

         18  research, track, and monitor the use of wood, wood

         19  products, and recycled lumber.  Not only at DCAS,

         20  but at every City agency. Besides the fact that

         21  information is required by this proposed

         22  legislation, it is nearly impossible to obtain it,

         23  and it is impossible to guarantee its accuracy.

         24                 The legislation would likely have a

         25  dramatic effect on the City's contracting process.
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          2  The additional certification burdens on contractors

          3  would probably increase contract costs, while

          4  further slowing down on an already elaborate

          5  process.

          6                 Capital construction projects, which

          7  already take a long time, would be delayed even

          8  further as contractors hire experts to identify and

          9  research every use of wood, wood products, and

         10  recycled plastic lumber.

         11                 In summary, Intro. 459 imposes a

         12  tremendous burden on DCAS to gather information and

         13  imposes even a greater burden on all City agencies

         14  to obtain the expertise, monitor wood, wood products

         15  and recycled plastic lumber use, verify the

         16  information collected from the vendors is correct,

         17  and report this information to DCAS in a timely and

         18  meaningful way.

         19                 As DCAS and all City agencies

         20  struggle to meet their Charter mandate

         21  responsibilities during this time of shrinking

         22  resources, this legislation will divert critical

         23  resources from agency's core functions.

         24                 Finally, Intro. 459 would be an

         25  onerous administrative burden with limited benefit
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          2  to the public.

          3                 Thank you for the opportunity to

          4  testify today.  I am happy to answer any of your

          5  questions.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Well thank you,

          7  Deputy Commissioner Ross.  Your testimony doesn't

          8  sound too good, considering the fact that it seems

          9  that the impression of DCAS is that this would be an

         10  almost impossible task.  And I just look at the last

         11  part of your statement, you said, "Finally, Intro.

         12  459 would be an onerous administrative burden with

         13  limited benefit to the public."  Well I guess it

         14  depends how you are looking at it. If forests are

         15  being destroyed and can never be replaced, whether

         16  or not they be in South America or other parts of

         17  the world, I think that that is a great benefit to

         18  the public, not only in New York City but throughout

         19  the world.

         20                 And if forests were being destroyed

         21  where indigenous people were being negatively

         22  impacted where they would no longer have homes, I

         23  think that the people of New York City would be

         24  concerned about that.

         25                 Now I may be wrong, but I think that

                                                            15

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONTRACTS

          2  that is my opinion based on the fact that all of the

          3  films that I have watched as far as the negative

          4  impact of illegal and unfriendly environmentally

          5  foresting of wood.  Now obviously, those films were

          6  made by environmental groups, but the impact is

          7  real, I think.  So it depends on, I guess, your

          8  opinion on this particular matter.

          9                 But I believe that members of the

         10  City Council, which is the legislative body

         11  understands that there are laws that we pass that

         12  will cost the City more money.  And I think that we

         13  look at, as a Council, as the Legislative Body of

         14  the City of New York, on whether or not it is worth

         15  the additional cost to the residents of the City of

         16  New York, if we move in a certain direction.  So I

         17  do understand that, quite frankly, but I would like

         18  to open it up for some questions, and I am going to

         19  see if my colleague, Doctor Stewart has any

         20  questions, before I begin.  Doctor Stewart.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  Considering

         22  the fact that we have the problem of deforestation

         23  in other countries, do you know that if the steps

         24  that have been taken to replant these forests, if

         25  there is any improvement within the past two years?
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          2  Because we know it has been a downward trend in

          3  terms of the destruction of forests in the Amazon

          4  and other places.  Do you know if there are any

          5  changes?

          6                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ROSS:  Well the

          7  State Finance Law, Section 165, really addresses

          8  tropical hard woods, which are the woods that you

          9  are talking about.  The State law already regulates

         10  that.  And the listing within the law, I have a copy

         11  of it with me, if you would like to take a look at

         12  it, really lists all of those, do you want me to

         13  read it?  These are, I cannot really read all the

         14  scientific names, but ash, let me see, it is a

         15  pretty extensive listing.  If you want to, do you

         16  just want to hand this to them to take a look at.

         17  These are the ones that are primarily responsible

         18  for indigenous people, protecting those types of

         19  tress.  It is an extensive list, there is probably a

         20  list of close to a hundred types of wood, which we

         21  already are not buying as part of our every single

         22  contract that we enter into.

         23                 So the listing under the State law

         24  that has been in place, I don't know when that went

         25  into effect, but it has been in place for some time.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  And do you

          3  think that the fact that all the different agencies

          4  may have, may be in a position to purchase wood, if

          5  the City were trying to put it through one agency,

          6  or put it through one supply house, that the idea

          7  of, or the problem of having, because you have so

          8  many different agencies doing it, if that problem

          9  would be solved if you tried to put it through one?

         10                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ROSS:  One of the

         11  problems with lumber, like we will buy plastic

         12  garbage bags.  Those are bought through DCAS, we buy

         13  them with a very high recycle content in them.  They

         14  are distributed to all City agencies.  We can

         15  guarantee you that basically that everybody out

         16  there has got a recycled plastic bag.  But they are

         17  items that you can buy in bulk, and they are items

         18  that can be stored.

         19                 You really cannot effectively store

         20  lumber, it ages very quickly.  We buy it in very

         21  small amounts.  The agencies, themselves, are not

         22  using a whole lot of wood.  Wood is used more in

         23  construction projects, where you would have a

         24  contractor come in and do it.  But by in large, the

         25  City does not buy a lot of wood, directly, like
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          2  having a truck load of wood delivered is not a

          3  common thing.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  And that

          5  means that you do not see any way, as written, this

          6  bill is going to do any good to the City?  Well much

          7  less - -

          8                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ROSS:  Well I

          9  think the reporting is very difficult.  I mean we

         10  would have to have, since this is something that

         11  agencies can buy up to $100,000 now.  They are not

         12  buying more than $100,000 worth of lumber at a time,

         13  because you buy a truck load of lumber.  If you got,

         14  you know, three or four thousands dollars worth of

         15  lumber, that is a sizable load.

         16                 The work that most City agencies do,

         17  we don't do a lot of that kind of building.  HPD

         18  used to use a lot, as they have gotten rid of

         19  housing, they use less and less.  And that would be

         20  a place when they went into rehab and fixed things

         21  up. A lot of that housing has gotten turned over,

         22  their numbers are particularly, you know, they are

         23  less now than they were 10 years ago.

         24                 We never stored lumber, because it

         25  does age.  It can warp, it becomes useless.  You
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          2  really have to look at wood when you buy it.  Where

          3  a vendor can sort of cheat you is if you get a lot

          4  of knots in wood.  So people tend to buy it as they

          5  need it, so you could take a good look at it.  You

          6  don't store it some place and keep it for a period

          7  of time.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  So basically

          9  what you said, in light of the fact that we would

         10  like to put some sort of, or bring attention to the

         11  public, and bring attention to everyone that we have

         12  this great problem of deforestation.

         13                 As you look at this bill, can you

         14  tell us what changes, or what you think that should

         15  be done so as to make it acceptable, or make it in a

         16  way that you feel that we can negotiate?

         17                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ROSS:  Well at

         18  DCAS we don't buy lumber, so I cannot really speak

         19  for the other agencies, because they are actually

         20  the ones that are purchasing it.  But I think that

         21  as part of our overall effort to look whenever

         22  possible to use recycled plastic products to see

         23  when they are viable, and when they are, you know,

         24  spend a little bit more time looking at that.

         25                 We did buy some of it, it is put in
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          2  playgrounds from time to time.  There are tests that

          3  people will do in a certain arena to try to test

          4  something out for a particular time. But I think to

          5  encourage people to use an alterative to wood.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  So you are

          7  saying that if we encourage people to use an

          8  alternative, that is a good thing?

          9                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ROSS:  I think it

         10  is. Especially in design of construction projects, a

         11  variety of things that are going on, because that is

         12  where most of the wood comes in.

         13                 We used to buy a fair amount of wood

         14  when we had dock workers.  Since the City does not

         15  have, they are not the docks that they used to be.

         16  We don't have dock workers, and that is where the

         17  bulk of the wood that you buy would be used, now

         18  that work is contracted out.  So you will have, and

         19  you know we use a lot of plastic recycled products

         20  in piers.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  Would the

         22  Parks Department, do you encourage them to use more

         23  recyclable plastic substitute?

         24                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ROSS:  I think

         25  they are very environmentally friendly and they
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          2  spend a lot of time looking into things and coming

          3  up with alternatives.  I think you look at

          4  playgrounds, there are a lot of plastic composite

          5  things that are used now, and before they all would

          6  have been wood.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  And is that

          8  considered much more costly, or it is cheaper?

          9                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ROSS:  I really

         10  don't know, because I don't buy that.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  All right.

         12                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ROSS:  And from

         13  where we sit, the reporting is a problem because I

         14  don't buy the wood, and it really is impossible to

         15  gather information on the origin at this point.

         16                 The Energy Star, we can do Energy

         17  Star because there is a federal entity that is out

         18  there that says, this is where the stuff is listed

         19  and we can check against that, and to find out if

         20  there is a number of manufacturers, there is a

         21  federal list that keeps getting updated.

         22                 Here there is no group out there that

         23  is a federal or State group that we can rely on.  I

         24  don't know what these certificates would really

         25  mean.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  Thank you,

          3  Mr. Chair.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Also, Council

          5  Member Yvette Clarke of Brooklyn has joined us, a

          6  member of the Committee.

          7                 Deputy Commissioner, it is my

          8  understanding that there have been two staff members

          9  assigned to DCAS, you agency, to work on

         10  environmental recycled procurement.  Is that true?

         11                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ROSS:  That is

         12  correct.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Okay.  Well,

         14  wood products squarely fall into this category.

         15  What are they currently working on where they

         16  cannot, I guess, set up a system, you know, we are

         17  dealing with computers and technology, in order so

         18  that they could create a reporting system in order

         19  to track and enforced recycled products relating to

         20  the law?

         21                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ROSS:  Well we

         22  actually do a report annually on recycled products.

         23  And what this group does is they review

         24  specifications for products, and they are constantly

         25  looking at a more environmentally preferable
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          2  substitute.

          3                 And paper we buy 30 percent post-

          4  consumer in our paper.  It is a wood product that is

          5  something that the City uses a lot of.  Any paper

          6  products that come through, we are getting the

          7  highest, you can go into almost any City building

          8  and all the paper is brown that people dry their

          9  hands with.  That is part of what I do.  We have

         10  high numbers in the amount of recycled products that

         11  we buy.

         12                 They have not been particularly

         13  looking at wood, because we don't buy wood at DCAS.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Yes, and I

         15  truly understand that.  But I mean if you look at,

         16  let's assume that the New York City Council passes

         17  Intro. 459 into law.  Assuming that Mayor Bloomberg,

         18  based on your statement representing the

         19  Commissioner and his position, that he vetoes this

         20  particular bill.  And assuming that if the Council

         21  is adamant on our position, we override the veto and

         22  he goes to court, and we wind up winning, let's

         23  assume that scenario for example.  Then it is

         24  responsible for the City of New York in order to

         25  monitor this, and DCAS is the agency that deals with
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          2  all of this.  Couldn't you have where all of the

          3  agencies, if the law is the law, then agencies must

          4  follow the law.

          5                 And if everyone has to purchase wood

          6  from environmental friendly and/or worst case

          7  scenario this report where you are getting the wood

          8  from and where the wood is coming from, then that

          9  could be a requirement on those vendors that want to

         10  do business with the City of New York.  I really do

         11  not see that as being problematic.

         12                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ROSS:  I think

         13  because the certification is not as available as an

         14  Energy Star sticker.  It makes it more difficult.

         15  And a lot vendors, we deal local lumber companies

         16  that is how wood gets delivered.  They tend to be

         17  local, they bring wood that is, you know, most of

         18  them all are, from my understanding what goes on in

         19  the agencies, is they tend to be small lumber

         20  companies that deliver the wood.

         21                 He would have to have some sort of

         22  system set up, and I do not think one currently

         23  exists to be able to track the origin of the wood.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Well I guess if

         25  I was a lumber yard, for example, and the City of
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          2  New York, let's say Parks purchased its wood from

          3  me.  I guess I would figure out how much business I

          4  am receiving, what percentage of business comes from

          5  the New York City to determine whether or not, if it

          6  is a sizable business, I am going to make sure that

          7  that customer is satisfied.  And I give you this

          8  small example, I grew up in Hamilton Heights Section

          9  of Manhattan, I used to work in a store, a grocery

         10  store, Bar- B- Que Pit.  And one day this man came

         11  in and ask for a pound of bar- b- que ribs.  And I

         12  fixed the man the ribs, and told the man what it

         13  cost.  And he said, I didn't ask for a pound, I

         14  asked for a half of pound.  And I said, Sir, you

         15  asked for a pound of ribs.  And so I got into a

         16  little discussion, I guess, an argument with the

         17  customer.  And my boss said, Bobby, give the man

         18  what he wants.  He wants a half a pound, you give

         19  that man a half of a pound of ribs.  And that is to

         20  satisfy that customer, we don't want to turn off a

         21  customer where they don't come back.

         22                 In this particular case, if they did

         23  not supply that to us, if that was the law, then

         24  they would lose the City of New York as a customer.

         25  And so as a vendors, I mean, as a supplier to the
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          2  City of New York, I would not want to lose a good

          3  customer.  And I do think that the City of New York

          4  with respect to policies of being environmental

          5  friendly and/or in a situation with the anti-

          6  apartheid situation, when apartheid exist in South

          7  Africa, these were policies and decisions that we

          8  made as a city, and there were financial impacts to

          9  that.

         10                 So I am just saying that, it doesn't

         11  say you must, it says you must make a reasonable

         12  effort.  And so sometimes we want to see a good

         13  effort being put forth as to making sure that the

         14  information that we request, and that is the

         15  reporting of that, takes place.

         16                 Do you think though that, that this

         17  was passing a law, would that responsibility fall

         18  onto DCAS to get all of that information?

         19                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ROSS:  It is

         20  impossible.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  It is

         22  impossible?

         23                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ROSS:  For DCAS

         24  to do it.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Why do you say
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          2  it is impossible?  You know what impossible means,

          3  right?  I don't mean to be funny, I am very serious.

          4    You are telling me it is impossible.  And for me

          5  for someone to say to me that monitoring and

          6  reporting is impossible, I take that straight

          7  literally what you say is impossible, and I don't

          8  believe it is impossible.

          9                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ROSS:  Well I

         10  think a lot of wood is bought in places like Home

         11  Depot.  They will send someone down to pick up, you

         12  know, 50 two by fours, then come back with it.  In

         13  that purchase where someone might be using a credit

         14  card to go down and buy it, I don't know how we

         15  would be able to certify the forest of origin from

         16  that.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Well you know,

         18  I think that the example of somebody taking a credit

         19  from an agency and going down to Home Depot, I think

         20  that everyone knows that the law is the law, and

         21  that you must follow the law.

         22                 Like I know that I have gone out and

         23  made purchases myself for my office.  What do you

         24  call it, Perrell, you know, this Perrell hand

         25  sanitizer with all of the colds going on, I have big
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          2  bottles in my office.  And I went out and I paid,

          3  and I know that the City of New York does not

          4  reimburse me for taxes, okay?  But, so I will just

          5  eat that, because I know the City will not reimburse

          6  me for that, but they will reimburse me for the

          7  actual purchase, but not the taxes I paid, because

          8  we are tax exemption.  I knew that when I went out

          9  and purchased it, so I knew I would lose the taxes

         10  that I had to pay on that.

         11                 But I do know that that is the way

         12  the system operates.  And so if the law is set, you

         13  have to make a good effort.  And it doesn't say for

         14  you to note where the wood has been certified or

         15  not, it says to report on all of the information

         16  that is contained in this particular interim.

         17                 So you know, when you say that it is

         18  impossible, I am going to challenge anyone that says

         19  to me that something is impossible.  I am very

         20  serious about that.  Because someone said to me, you

         21  know, the CFE versus the State of New York Education

         22  lawsuit that we have been involved with, that we

         23  couldn't win that.  And after 11 years of

         24  litigation, and over $40 million, the value of that,

         25  Deputy Commissioner Ross, is $14.9 billion for the
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          2  children of New York City.

          3                 So you know when you say to me it is

          4  impossible, I literally take from what you say is

          5  impossible, and I disagree with that.

          6                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ROSS:  I think

          7  the impossibility is in the fact that there is not a

          8  certification like Energy Star.  If you go into Home

          9  Depot and you buy and air conditioner, it does, in

         10  fact, have a certification on it.  And what I buy

         11  are things like office products.  I know, and

         12  furniture, and there is the hardwood, State Finance

         13  Law provision which they cannot buy tropical

         14  hardwoods, we are pretty certified that when we buy

         15  furniture, those type of things, that they are

         16  complying with the State Finance Law.  But then to

         17  find out that every time somebody goes to Staples to

         18  buy something, how you back into that, how do I

         19  report on that?  We don't get line items.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:   We ask that as

         21  an agency when agencies go out there, they have to

         22  report, and they have to ask whether or not certain

         23  information about wood.  And I think that we want,

         24  if this is passed into law, we want a good faith

         25  effort as far as to adhere to the law.  I think that
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          2  is what I would want.  And if people are not making

          3  a good faith effort to comply with the law, then

          4  that is a problem.

          5                 But let me turn to my colleague,

          6  Council Member Yvette Clarke.  Council Member

          7  Clarke, do you have any questions or comments?  Yes,

          8  Council Member Clarke.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE:  Thank you,

         10  Mr. Chair.  I just wanted to bring to your attention

         11  that the Mayor did just sign into law an Endangered

         12  Species Bill, which looks at products that are sold

         13  through our retail establishments that have to deal

         14  with endangered species or threaten species.  And it

         15  sort of gave us a window into ways in which,

         16  perhaps, working in collaboration with the

         17  Department of Consumer Affairs this issue of

         18  retailers, and the type of stock that we are

         19  purchasing from them can be addressed.  And I think

         20  that is part of the challenge that DCAS is putting

         21  forth here, is that they are saying that there is no

         22  way for them to determine when someone uses a credit

         23  card, the origin of the wood.

         24                 I think that, perhaps, if we work in

         25  collaboration where there is a standard set, and you
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          2  know, we utilize the enforcement arm of the

          3  Department of Consumer Affairs, we could probably

          4  address that issue.  So I am with you, I believe

          5  that where there is a will, there is a way.  And

          6  while there is a federal standard around endangered

          7  species and a list, perhaps that is something we

          8  could piggyback off of when it comes to determining

          9  the origin of the woods that are utilized in our

         10  marketplace.

         11                 That is essentially my comment.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Thank you.  Let

         13  me ask, if you know, and I don't know, I am just

         14  asking the question, if you don't know, it is okay.

         15  I am not trying to put you on the spot to try to

         16  trick you up or anything like that.  Do you know if

         17  other City agencies have staff or experts on the

         18  whole issue of dealing with wood, like for example

         19  the New York City Parks Department or other agencies

         20  that purchase a lot of wood?

         21                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ROSS:  I think

         22  the only experts on wood are at the Parks

         23  Department, but their expertise is in different

         24  species of trees.  It is more about not after

         25  market.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Okay, you are

          3  talking about dealing with the trees, itself.  Is

          4  that correct?

          5                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ROSS:  Right.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Do you know if

          7  they have any experts dealing with wood purchases or

          8  anything?  I would assume though that since they

          9  purchase a lot of wood, that someone deals with that

         10  particular area and has some expertise or knowledge

         11  on that.

         12                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ROSS:  I don't

         13  know.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  You don't know.

         15    Maybe I will just ask that question, because I

         16  just want to find out, how many, for example, do you

         17  what agencies or departments purchase the most of

         18  the wood from the City of New York?

         19                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ROSS:  Well the

         20  problem, one of the problems that we have is when

         21  you say the way wood is written in this, there is

         22  wood in everything.  This is wood.  I mean, wood is,

         23  if you take the Staples Office Supply Catalog

         24  anything that has paper in it, in that entire

         25  catalog is going to have a wood component.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Yes, but paper

          3  is paper, and wood is wood.

          4                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ROSS:  Lumber you

          5  are talking about, lumber?

          6                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Let me ask you

          7  a question, what did you think we meant by this?

          8                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ROSS:  Everything

          9  that has got any wood in it, that is what it says.

         10  It is all - -

         11                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  It says, number

         12  7, "wood product means any product made in whole or

         13  in part from wood for a building material or

         14  furniture article."  That is what it says in here.

         15                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ROSS:  Okay,

         16  okay, I'm sorry.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  So I am asking

         18  you whether or not, so that doesn't mean paper then,

         19  am I wrong, "including, but not limited to plywood,

         20  veneer, cabinets, paneling, molding, doorskins,

         21  joinery or sawnwood."  I am just trying to make sure

         22  that we are on the same wavelength as far as

         23  understanding, that is all.

         24                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ROSS:  Okay, but

         25  it would beds, bookcases, chairs, chests, tables,
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          2  dressers, desks, sofas, furniture.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Yes.

          4                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ROSS:  If the

          5  main focus is furniture, we know that we have

          6  tropical hardwoods effects the furniture contract.

          7  A lot of the furniture we buy is plastic composite

          8  now as opposed to being wood.  I can tell you how

          9  much furniture we buy in a dollar amount, I cannot

         10  specifically tell you each piece of furniture that

         11  is bought.  I cannot tell you if we bought 10 of

         12  these, that 10 were purchased, the data is not kept

         13  that way.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Well, Deputy

         15  Commissioner, you referred to the Finance Law, I

         16  think it was a Finance Law, and I am going to turn

         17  to your testimony.  "Section 165 of the Finance

         18  Law," and you said that for the City of New York

         19  DCAS was in compliance with that. Is that correct?

         20                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ROSS:  Yes.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  To the best of

         22  your knowledge.

         23                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ROSS:  To the

         24  best of my knowledge, yes.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Right, right.
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          2  But I have been told that this law does not

          3  encompass all of the woods that are being used by

          4  the City of New York.  Is that true?

          5                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ROSS:  I have no

          6  idea.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  You have no

          8  idea.  Well who would know that?  Who would know

          9  that?  I mean, if other woods were being used in New

         10  York City other than those that are defined in

         11  Section 165, who would have knowledge of that?

         12                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ROSS:  I imagine

         13  we would have to go to the agencies, and they would

         14  have to talk to construction contractors.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Because I have

         16  been told that, what is this, Ipe is a type of wood

         17  that is being used in the City that is not part of

         18  this particular list that is listed under 165 for

         19  the Finance Law.  Do you have any knowledge of that?

         20                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ROSS:  No, I

         21  don't, but they can always add to this list, the

         22  State.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Yes, but I am

         24  not talking about the State, I am referring to the

         25  City of New York, though. Because, you know, New
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          2  York City has to comply with the State. So let me

          3  just ask a question then, if you know, how is the

          4  City complying with Section 165 of the Finance Law

          5  in monitoring to ensure that purchases are made in

          6  compliance with the law, how do you monitor that,

          7  what agency or department, does your agency monitor

          8  that?

          9                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ROSS:  It is in

         10  the contracts, they are obligated to, it is in all

         11  the contracts that we let for these products, and

         12  they are obligated under the law to comply with it.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Okay, I

         14  understand that from the process point of view you

         15  may have that written in the contract, and you

         16  expect compliance.  And you and I know that

         17  compliance is not necessarily 100 percent, we

         18  ideally hope for that.  But my question was how do

         19  you monitor to ensure compliance?

         20                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ROSS: I don't

         21  have wood experts to go out and look at furniture

         22  and know exactly what type of wood.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  So you are

         24  saying that you don't monitor at all?

         25                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ROSS:  No, they
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          2  are obligated to comply with the law.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  So you are

          4  talking about self- compliance, self- compliance

          5  with the law.  There is no system of monitoring

          6  whether or not all the agencies and departments are

          7  in compliance with Section 165 of the Finance Law?

          8                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ROSS:  And we

          9  don't have wood experts to go out to look at

         10  furniture.  I mean, we get something in, it is

         11  basically quality- based, does it work, is it the

         12  right item number that was sent, is it constructed

         13  properly.

         14                 I mean if it is reported to us that

         15  there is a suspicion that somebody is using

         16  something other than that, we will investigate it.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Now, Deputy

         18  Commissioner, if you can rely on compliance with the

         19  Finance Law 164 of 2004, then how come you cannot

         20  rely on vendors information relating to wood

         21  products that the City of New York purchase?

         22  Because remember we said that we don't expect you to

         23  certify that certain wood comes from a certain area.

         24    But we expect a good faith effort to ask and

         25  determine that.  And remember we talked about as far
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          2  as a good effort in trying to adhere to the law.

          3                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ROSS:  I think it

          4  would be impossible for a distributor to be able to

          5  get that much information out of there primary

          6  manufacturer.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Are you a

          8  distributor to have knowledge of that base, do you

          9  really believe that?  Do you believe that as the

         10  Deputy Commissioner, or that is your personal

         11  opinion?

         12                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ROSS:  I am a

         13  little bit confused about what your question was.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Well, now you

         15  are saying that you don't believe that a vendor,

         16  such as Home Depot, can ascertain that information.

         17                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ROSS:  I think if

         18  it were something that had a label, if there were

         19  some sort of certification process that existed,

         20  that the stuff can be stamped with very analogous to

         21  Energy Star, we would be able to track it. The fact

         22  that that doesn't exist at the federal level creates

         23  a problem.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  But federal

         25  level, but I think if you don't ask the information,

                                                            39

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONTRACTS

          2  just because there doesn't exist a federal clearing

          3  house, or a federal registry for wood, and I am not

          4  saying that there isn't, but that is basically what

          5  you are saying.  You are saying that because that

          6  doesn't exist, and it cannot be done, and you can't

          7  ask a question from Home Depot where it is obtaining

          8  its wood that New York City is purchasing unless it

          9  is to the tune of maybe millions of dollars of wood,

         10  I mean, you are basically saying to me that you

         11  don't want to make a good faith effort, if in fact

         12  this law was passed.

         13                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ROSS:  Well if

         14  Home Depot is able to say to me it came from this

         15  forest, who do I know who is the good forest and the

         16  bad forest.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Right, but you

         18  rely on the same information from the Finance Law,

         19  you don't certify to that, you have no monitoring of

         20  this whatsoever, just based on what you said.

         21                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ROSS:  But

         22  contractually they are obligated not to give us that

         23  wood.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Okay, okay,

         25  contractually. But you have no way of monitoring it
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          2  to make sure that it happens.

          3                 But you don't, it seems as though you

          4  don't even want to have to ask the question from

          5  Home Depot or anywhere else as to wood purchases

          6  that the City of New York would purchase. And I

          7  don't see that as being, I see that, you know, it is

          8  not undue burden to ask the questions like that,

          9  just like I ask you whether or not you truly believe

         10  that it is impossible to do.

         11                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ROSS:  Well is

         12  there a list of bad forests that we can refer to and

         13  say it is you can't use these people, that I can put

         14  it in the contract and say, these are, some group

         15  has decided that these are forests that we shouldn't

         16  use?

         17                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Well I think

         18  that the City of New York in doing business, you

         19  need to know that.  The City for New York Deputy

         20  Commissioner, I am sorry to say, if we are doing

         21  business we need to know where the good businesses

         22  is or bad businesses is, and do business with good

         23  businesses, that is what we need to know.  And that

         24  is even if you look at today's paper in the Daily

         25  News, in which all of us have, you know, it says
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          2  here, and I don't know how true it is, "MOMA

          3  Enrolled Gallery," there was a connection with the

          4  contractors that built up MOMA that they were

          5  connected to the Mob.  Shouldn't we know what

          6  businesses are good businesses and bad businesses in

          7  order to do business with.

          8                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ROSS:  Well I

          9  think we have a VENDEX process that gives us a

         10  pretty good indication on the backgrounds of

         11  vendors.  We put them through a check.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  All right, I am

         13  not going to keep putting you on the spot, Deputy

         14  Commissioner.  I just say to you, though, that I

         15  don't know if you have ever been in front of my

         16  Committee before.  But you just cannot give me any

         17  fluff answers, and quite frankly, and I am being

         18  quite honest with you, it seems to be that you are

         19  giving me fluff answers.  Do you know what fluff

         20  answers mean?  And I am not being funny, I am being

         21  very serious about that.

         22                 Let me just say, you mentioned a

         23  certification burden on contractors, this bill would

         24  require no certification, so I am asking you, if you

         25  remember your statement, what did you mean by that?
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          2                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ROSS:  Are you

          3  referring to the Forest Stewardship Council?

          4                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  I am looking on

          5  page 3, the second paragraph from the top, you said,

          6   "The additional certification burdens on

          7  contractors would probably increase contract costs."

          8    So, well, I am just trying to get an understanding

          9  of what you meant by that.

         10                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ROSS:  It is an

         11  additional burden on the contractors to have to come

         12  up with the certification.  I mean right now if you

         13  go to Home Depot and you buy the wood, you go and

         14  buy the wood.  This is requiring that there be

         15  additional steps.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Well I don't

         17  know if there would be additional steps.  You are

         18  saying an additional burden on the contractors.  You

         19  know, I go back to what I said before, if I am a

         20  contractor and the City of New York is a good part

         21  of my business, if the City of New York is saying

         22  that they want to know, and they have a check sheet

         23  that you can make up, the wood that we are

         24  purchasing, do you know where it came from, you are

         25  asking the question, do you know where it came from?
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          2    Do you know, for example, let me go to, where is

          3  the bill, Robert, I am looking for my copy, one

          4  second.  Okay, you would ask on a check off, the

          5  quantity of each species of wood purchased, the

          6  purpose for which the wood was purchased for, you

          7  can have this on a check off.  The geographical

          8  location from which each wood species was derived,

          9  and whether or not, if known, and you should make

         10  reasonable inquiries as to ascertain that

         11  information.  All of that, those questions could be

         12  put on a check sheet.  So, if the Department of

         13  Parks and Recreation is going out and buying lumber,

         14  this is what they have, this is the test that they

         15  have to meet in order to purchase the wood.  If

         16  another agency, DOT, the same thing.  I don't see it

         17  as being impossible.

         18                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ROSS:  Well, you

         19  know, this is not my field of expertise, but in a

         20  large construction project that would get pretty

         21  detailed, that every piece of wood used in the

         22  construction project would have to be documented to

         23  some level.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Okay, well, I

         25  think that, let me ask you, I'm sorry, you are the
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          2  Deputy Commissioner for DCAS, Deputy Commissioner of

          3  Municipal Supply Services, okay. What do you

          4  basically do concerning the Municipal Supply

          5  Services, I'm sorry?

          6                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ROSS:  The

          7  Division of Municipal Supply Services buys

          8  approximately $700 million worth of goods.  We put

          9  out large requirements contracts, which are

         10  contracts that all City agencies purchase from, they

         11  are for things like paper, garbage bags, food.  They

         12  are out there, they are big, anybody can sit down

         13  and issue a requisition against them.  We are the

         14  only entity that really buys centrally for the City.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Okay.

         16                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ROSS:  And we

         17  only buy commodities where there is going to be a

         18  large volume and multiple agencies use them, and the

         19  Charter says we are to do that.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Right.  Well,

         21  Deputy Commissioner, I want to thank you for coming

         22  in and giving the Department's position on this

         23  particular matter.  I think that you can tell by my

         24  questions and communication with you that I am not

         25  satisfied with the responses that you have given.  I
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          2  accept them as you gave them, but I say to you

          3  though, that it doesn't appear to me that DCAS is

          4  willing to make a good faith effort, if in fact this

          5  law was put into place.  And quite frankly as a

          6  legislator, I do expect a more responsive, specific

          7  answer to the questions that I have given.

          8                 So I want to thank you for coming in

          9  and giving testimony.  Did you want to say

         10  something?

         11                 MS. BLUM: (phonetic)  Yes, Chairman

         12  Jackson, I am Jennifer Blum, I am the Director of

         13  Special Projects at DCAS, and I would just like to

         14  make an additional comment.

         15                 DCAS purchases $700 million, less

         16  than 10 percent of the total contracting budget that

         17  you quoted as nine point something billion dollars.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Goods,

         19  services, and construction.

         20                 MS. BLUM:  Less than 10 percent,

         21  okay.  Only a small piece of what DCAS, the City's

         22  overall capital budget, DCAS has a very small part

         23  of.  Okay, we are not DDC, we are not DEP, we are

         24  not DOT.

         25                 I think that the conversation that
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          2  has just transpired grossly simplified some of the

          3  real issues we have.  I mean we talk about just the

          4  10 percent that we are responsible for, we are

          5  looking at wood products right, as defined by your

          6  proposed legislation.  And you know, our lawyers

          7  looked at it, I mean are you talking about flag

          8  poles, are you talking about, maybe not the chairs

          9  in this room, but as we were discussing it, we were

         10  sitting on chairs that had plastic, you know, our

         11  rear ends were on plastic, but the arms were wood.

         12  I mean where does it stop, where does it, that is

         13  now how we purchase.

         14                 You know, we do, oftentimes do

         15  something called catalog contracts, where there may

         16  be a whole set of different products, maybe a whole

         17  set of different pieces of furniture that one

         18  contractor will be awarded.  And all we would know

         19  as DCAS is that a specific City agency like the

         20  Department of Transportation bought, you know,

         21  $50,000 off that contract.  We don't know how many

         22  chairs that had wood on them that they purchased.

         23  We don't know, you know, how many composite desks

         24  they purchased.  We know they bought $50,000 worth

         25  of furniture that is all we know.
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          2                 So, there are many, many steps in

          3  this, and like the Deputy Commissioner testified, we

          4  typically buy from, not from manufacturers, we buy

          5  from distributors.  So we are several steps down the

          6  economic chain.  So, as you move down the economic

          7  chain, each step is going to need to kind of go back

          8  and say, okay, where did you get it, what forest, I

          9  mean it is a very complicated process.

         10                 And we worked closely, you know, with

         11  Rob and others, and you know, members of the Council

         12  on some really powerful, important environmental and

         13  purchasing pieces of legislation like Energy Star.

         14  And Rob can tell you, it worked, because there is a

         15  real way that we can track it.

         16                 We have, you know, yes, we have

         17  environmental purchasing experts on staff, but that

         18  is not what their expertise is, that is not what we

         19  do.  And, you know, we would be happy to sit down

         20  with Rob and other members of your staff and talk

         21  more in depth about how, you know, Virginia's folks

         22  do what they do, and why we think that this

         23  legislation as drafted is nearly impossible, and the

         24  resources don't currently exist for us to collect

         25  this information.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Okay, well I

          3  appreciate you attempting to clarify on behalf of

          4  the Deputy Commissioner.  I think that she was

          5  pretty clear in representing the agency, her

          6  position.  And I do say that we are available if you

          7  feel that certain things are unworkable in the bill,

          8  to sit down and discuss this.  You know there are

          9  bills that are introduced that are 459- A, B, C, so

         10  there is opportunity for discussion concerning this

         11  particular matter. So, we look forward to working

         12  with you on this particular Intro.

         13                 So, Deputy Commissioner, I am sorry,

         14  I guess I put you through the wringer in this

         15  particular way, but I guess that is the way life is

         16  sometimes.

         17                 Well thank you for coming in, and I

         18  wish you a happy holiday.

         19                 Before I end, I would like to

         20  introduce my colleague from Queens, Council Member

         21  Joseph Addabbo, thanks, Joe.  I don't know if you

         22  have any questions of the Deputy Commissioner.

         23                 Thank you, Deputy Commissioner.

         24                 Our next witness is Stephen Chenault

         25  from Sierra Club of New York City Group, and Virali

                                                            49

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONTRACTS

          2  Gokaldas from the NRDC, and that stands for the

          3  Natural Resources Defense Council.  Good morning.

          4                 MR. CHENAULT: Good morning.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Good morning,

          6  and Stephen since I called you first, want don't you

          7  identify yourself, your title, and who you

          8  represent, and also giver Virali the same

          9  opportunity.  And then Stephen you can begin with

         10  your testimony.

         11                 MR. CHENAULT:  Thank you.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Pull the mic

         13  down a little bit please?

         14                 MR. CHENAULT:  Sure.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Thank you.

         16                 MR. CHENAULT:  My name is Stephen

         17  Chenault.  I am Chairperson of the Good Wood

         18  Committee, the Sierra Club of the New York City

         19  Group.

         20                 MS. GOKALDAS:  And my name is Virali

         21  Gokaldas.  I am a Policy Analyst with the Natural

         22  Resources Defense Council.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Okay, please

         24  begin.

         25                 MR. CHENAULT:  The unsustainable
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          2  consumption of wood and wood products is leading to

          3  ecological devastation, abuse of human rights,

          4  unhealthy environmental conditions for local

          5  populations, invasion of indigenous people's lands,

          6  abuse of worker rights, illegal logging, and logging

          7  that is used to fund violence, war and repression in

          8  many developing countries, including Liberia,

          9  Myanmar, and the Congo.  A report recently released

         10  by the Sierra Club entitled "Take Action to

         11  Defending the World's Forests" describes the

         12  courageous fight of many third world people to

         13  defend their forests against the widespread

         14  ecological and human devastation caused by

         15  unsustainable logging, and the persecution of many

         16  forest activists that they endure. The facts and

         17  examples presented in the report make a clear case

         18  for why it is essential that consumers of wood and

         19  other building materials, including New York City be

         20  aware of the sources of their wood and aware of the

         21  ecological and human rights implications of their

         22  wood purchases.  With this knowledge,  the City can

         23  take the next steps to reform their procurement

         24  policies for wood and other building materials and

         25  furniture.  For this reason, I would like to thank
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          2  the Council especially Council Member Gennaro and

          3  Speaker Miller, for introducing Intro. No. 459,

          4  which will report on the use of building materials

          5  and furniture, including wood, and give the bill the

          6  support of the Good Wood Committee of the New York

          7  City Group of the Sierra Club, of which I am Chair.

          8  While at the same time, offering a few amendments

          9  and continued assistance in crafting the best

         10  legislation possible to support the reform of the

         11  City's purchasing practices for wood and other

         12  building materials.  I would also like to thank the

         13  Contracts Committee and its Chair, Robert Jackson,

         14  for holding this hearing and for its efforts over

         15  the years to address the ecological and human rights

         16  consequences of the City's procurement policies.

         17                 I would like to quoted a short

         18  section of the Sierra Club report, which states:

         19                  "American consumer's unquestioning

         20  acceptance of goods delivered anonymously via the

         21  global economy helps fuel the fires of violent

         22  conflict.  According to the French newspaper Le

         23  Monde Diplomatique, the term "conflict lumber: Was

         24  coined in 2001 by the United Nations' panel

         25  investigating resource exploitation in the
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          2  Democratic Republic of Congo.  Since 1998, timber

          3  has helped fund a conflict in the Democratic

          4  Republic of Congo that has killed an estimated 3.3

          5  to 4.7 million people.."

          6                 New York City is a major consumer of

          7  wood, including rain forest wood for such purposes

          8  as boardwalks, park benches, decking for walkways,

          9  buildings, furniture and other purpose, but very

         10  little information is available to policy makers and

         11  the public on the sources of the wood and the

         12  attendant ecological and human rights conditions

         13  that are a consequence of the production and

         14  consumption of the wood. Without this information,

         15  the City has no way of knowing whether its wood

         16  consumption is fueling violent conflict and other

         17  human rights abuses, as well as ecological

         18  devastation.

         19                 Intro. No. 459 will help remedy this

         20  situation by providing key information on purchases

         21  of building materials and furniture I should say.

         22  This is an important first step, and the Sierra Club

         23  wishes to work with the Council to use this

         24  information to develop initiative that will meet the

         25  pressing need to reform the City's procurement
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          2  practices for wood and other building materials, to

          3  ensure that the City is supporting ecological

          4  sustainability and human rights through its

          5  purchasing practices.

          6                 Despite the ecological, cultural, and

          7  economic importance of forests, destruction of

          8  forest ecosystems continues at an alarming rate.

          9  The World Resources Institute estimates that 33.8

         10  million acres of tropical forest are lost each year.

         11  About half of the earth's temperate and tropical

         12  rain forest has been lost.  These destructive

         13  processes are destroying countless plant and animal

         14  species, depleting biodiversity, disrupting local

         15  and global ecological processes, and destroying

         16  cultures in the way of traditional peoples.

         17                 In addition, although unsustainable

         18  logging sometimes provides employment opportunities,

         19  these jobs tend to be low- paid, short- term, and

         20  dangerous, while labor, health, and safety standards

         21  are often weak and unenforced.  In Myanmar, forced

         22  labor for logging by the military is well

         23  documented.  The ecological destruction that

         24  typically accompanies unsustainable logging is

         25  particularly devastating to local communities, and
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          2  indigenous people to rely on the forest for their

          3  survival. Unsustainable logging seriously increases

          4  soil erosion, compromising rivers and the viability

          5  of fish stocks, an important food source.  In

          6  Malaysia, a Sarawak Government study showed that in

          7  recently unsustainable logged areas, there is a

          8  threefold increase in serious malnutrition in native

          9  communities, while the study of nutrition among

         10  indigenous people in the Brazilian Amazon has

         11  revealed the highest rates of malnutrition in area

         12  that had been invaded by loggers.  Unsustainable

         13  logging may also result in new inequalities, a

         14  migration of urban areas, and the undermining of

         15  customary laws, social support networks, and systems

         16  of land management.

         17                 As you know, the Sierra Club has been

         18  working with Council, especially this Committee, to

         19  reform the City's procurement of wood products and

         20  building materials and furniture articles, I should

         21  say.  In previous bills, specifically Intro. No.

         22  108, we tried to promote the use of several

         23  environmentally preferable building materials that

         24  would ensure ecological sustainability and the

         25  protection of human rights.  These were the
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          2  following:

          3                 1.  Wood products for building

          4  materials or furniture articles originating in

          5  forests certified through a forest certification

          6  program with the required environmental, social, and

          7  economic standards.  Only the Forest Stewardship

          8  Council's forest certification program meets the

          9  standards held by most environmental and human

         10  rights groups.

         11                 2.  Reclaimed wood products.

         12                 3.  Bio- based materials, i.e.,

         13  building materials made form agricultural residue.

         14                 4.  And recycled plastic and other

         15  recycled materials.

         16                 For further definitions of these

         17  materials, building materials, please refer to

         18  Intro. No. 108.  Intro. No. 459 in regards to these

         19  environmentally preferable building materials, only

         20  covers certified wood and recycled plastic lumber.

         21  Because we would like to use Intro. No. 459 to

         22  monitor the success of future initiatives to

         23  increase the use of these environmentally preferable

         24  building materials and City contracts, requests that

         25  provisions be added to Intro. No. 459 for reporting
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          2  on the use of reclaimed wood products and bio- based

          3  materials.

          4                 I would like to make important

          5  mention that the need to distinguish between various

          6  certification programs for wood.  Right now, the

          7  Forest Stewardship Council is the only certification

          8  program that meets the high standards needed to

          9  ensure ecological sustainability, and the protection

         10  of human and worker rights involving the production

         11  and distribution of wood products.  It is remarkably

         12  stronger than other certification programs on social

         13  criteria, and therefore, will be especially

         14  effective in ensuring the protection of human rights

         15  and prohibitions against illegal logging and

         16  purchases of conflict timber.  Furthermore, it

         17  ensures benefits from forestry and wood processing

         18  operations to local communities, including

         19  indigenous people.

         20                 Again, I thank the Contracts

         21  Committee, as well as the City Council as a whole

         22  for its efforts to address the issues of

         23  unsustainability and the abuse of human rights that

         24  are too often a part of the production and

         25  distribution of wood products. Intro. No. 459 is a
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          2  good first step towards these goals by providing

          3  accurate and much needed information on the City's

          4  purchases of building materials and furniture.  With

          5  the information provided by this legislation as an

          6  important basis, I and the Sierra Club look forward

          7  to working with the Council and this Committee to

          8  reform the City's purchasing practices for wood and

          9  other building materials to ensure ecological

         10  sustainability, the protection of worker and human

         11  rights, and the well being of local communities.

         12                 Thank you.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Well thank you,

         14  Mr. Chenault for giving testimony concerning the

         15  Sierra Club's view and as the Chair of the Good Wood

         16  Committee.  I thank you for coming in.

         17                 I would like to hear from Virali from

         18  the National Resource Defense Council.

         19                 MS. GOKALDAS:  Good morning, Mr.

         20  Chairman and members of the Committee.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Good morning.

         22                 MS. GOKALDAS:  My name is Virali

         23  Gokaldas.  I am a Policy Analyst for the NRDC.  It

         24  is a national, non- profit, environmental

         25  organization.  For more than 25 years NRDC has been
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          2  active on environmental issues in the New York

          3  region, and has been working to preserve rare and

          4  endangered forests around the globe.

          5                 On a more personal note, I am also a

          6  citizen of South Africa, and am well aware of how

          7  purchasing policies can change landscapes, whether

          8  political or environmental, and can dramatically

          9  change lives.

         10                 And I want to thank the New York City

         11  Council for leading the charge against investment in

         12  South Africa when it was so critical to the cause.

         13                 We are pleased to offer a brief

         14  statement today in support of Intro. 459, which

         15  requires City agencies to report on the purchase and

         16  use of wood and recycled plastic lumber.  At the

         17  same time, we respectfully proposed one amendment to

         18  strengthen the proposed legislation, to better

         19  protect forests and to boost solid waste recycling.

         20                 First, we would like to provide some

         21  background on why this issue is important.  First,

         22  provide habitat for 90 percent of the plant and

         23  animal species that live on land, as well as home

         24  lands for many of the earth's last remaining

         25  indigenous cultures.  Forests are commercially
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          2  important as well, offering resources like wood,

          3  rubber, medicinal plants, including plants that are

          4  being used continually to create cancer drugs.

          5  Harvesting these resources appropriately, provides

          6  employment for local communities.

          7                 More than half of the earth's

          8  original forest cover has been destroyed due to

          9  human activity such as agriculture, development and

         10  logging, with much of this loss occurring in the

         11  last three decades alone.  The conventional timber

         12  industry is particular has eliminated more habitat

         13  and species per unit of production than any other

         14  industry.  Clear cutting, a common logging practice

         15  involving the removal of all trees from a given

         16  tract of forest, decimates habitat, increases flood

         17  severity in surrounding regions, eliminates fish and

         18  wild life species due to soil erosion, and kills

         19  opportunities for small- scale sustainable economic

         20  development, such as wood harvesting, fruit-

         21  picking, saphenous extraction, and rubber tapping.

         22                 To help preserve and better manage

         23  forests around the world, especially old- growth

         24  forests and those in danger of extinction, NRDC

         25  supports purchasing certified wood and, more
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          2  applicable, wood alternatives.  Forest certification

          3  is a seal of approval that a wood or paper product

          4  comes from a forest that is managed in accordance

          5  with strict environmental and social standards, and

          6  that refers specifically to the FSC certification

          7  method, which we will mention later.

          8                 Accordingly, we applaud the City

          9  Council for initiating the process of information

         10  gathering on New York City's wood purchases.  And I

         11  just want to emphasize that this is simply a

         12  reporting requirement, and it is just a data

         13  gathering phase.  And the tracking requirement set

         14  forth in Intro. 459 is an important first step in

         15  making our purchasing policies more socially and

         16  environmentally responsible in the future.

         17                 I want to note, as well, I appreciate

         18  DCAS's comment that reporting is difficult.  I

         19  believe the phrase was nearly impossible by, you

         20  know, at the end of the testimony. However, it is

         21  the very lack of oversight, because it is difficult

         22  that allows egregious logging to continue, and we

         23  cannot allow that to continue, as a large- scale

         24  purchaser.

         25                 Because New York City is a large
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          2  purchaser of wood- based products and wood, however,

          3  we also suggest incorporating into the final

          4  legislation a purchasing requirement for recycled

          5  plastic lumber, also known as RPL.  I am pleased to

          6  note that DCAS also supports wood alternatives, and

          7  that agencies are currently doing some of this

          8  already.

          9                 RPL is an environmentally beneficial

         10  alternative to wood- based products that is made out

         11  of recycled plastic products normally sent to

         12  landfills or incinerators.  For many types of wood

         13  uses, it performs as well or better than its wood

         14  counterpart, and usually requires less maintenance

         15  and replacement.  In short, RPL, offers significant

         16  environmental benefits in two ways: It reduces the

         17  demand for wood products and logging, while

         18  concurrently utilizing a commodity that would

         19  otherwise be buried or burned as trash.

         20                 NRDC recognizes that RPL is not an

         21  appropriate wood substitute in all settings.  But

         22  for certain categories of wood where RPL meets

         23  performance standards is competitively priced and is

         24  available, City agencies should purchase this

         25  material instead of wood.  For other categories of
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          2  wood, City agencies should purchase wood certified

          3  by the FSC, the Forest Stewardship Council, which is

          4  the best guarantee that wood is sustainably

          5  harvested and legally procured.

          6                 We look forward to working with this

          7  Committee and other stakeholders to enhance this

          8  important bill.  Thank you for the opportunity to

          9  testify today.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Well, I want to

         11  thank you for coming in and giving testimony on

         12  behalf of the NRDC, the Natural Resources Defense

         13  Council.

         14                 We are joined by my colleague, David

         15  Yassky, and many of my colleagues are over at City

         16  Hall, where now at 250 Broadway, directly across the

         17  street, there is a huge hearing going on right now,

         18  as far as the Hudson Yards, and there are hundreds

         19  of people there, and many of my colleagues are over

         20  there.  This is an issue that not only effects the

         21  Hudson Yards, but the entire City.  And so I will be

         22  going over there myself in order to listen to the

         23  testimony because it is a very, very important

         24  issue.

         25                 I would like to open up questions to
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          2  my colleagues, any questions?  Let me just ask a

          3  few, now you sat through the testimony of the Deputy

          4  Commissioner for DCAS, and you know that I called

          5  her to sought of like challenge her when she said

          6  that it was impossible.  Do you think that it is

          7  impossible to ascertain this information, or that it

          8  is highly improbably, or what is the range of

          9  difficulty, in your opinion, even though you are not

         10  DCAS, you are not a City agency, do you believe that

         11  this is an undue burden on the City of New York to

         12  get this information and to report it accordingly,

         13  if we pass this into law?  Any one of you, or both

         14  of you can respond.

         15                 MR. CHENAULT:  First of all, we are

         16  especially promoting the Forest Stewardship Council,

         17  and you just need to ask the vendors if its FSC the

         18  source of the wood.  And what is special about FSC

         19  is that they definitely know the origin and species

         20  of their wood.  They track it from the forest to the

         21  lumber yard.  You cannot sell it as FSC wood unless

         22  you have a full track record of where it comes from,

         23  what the species is, whether it is legally

         24  harvested.  So Forest Stewardship Council will

         25  definitely, that information is available.
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          2                 Often, the Parks Department for

          3  example will specify the species.  So they have to

          4  know what species it is in order to be compliant

          5  with the specifications of the contract.

          6                 And at other times it will difficult,

          7  which is one of the problems with forest products is

          8  that the wood is sent and laundered, illegal wood is

          9  laundered and it is hard to track some times.  But

         10  what the bill calls for is just ask, we want you to

         11  ask, and get the best, due diligence in trying to

         12  get this information.   And that is all the bill

         13  asks for, and I think that is doable.

         14                 So I think it is a practical bill, we

         15  will work with you and get experts involved in our

         16  organizations to help you in any way to make this as

         17  practical and implementable as possible.  You know,

         18  we have talked, we have, I am sure that there will

         19  be second hearing, I imagine to this, I don't know

         20  if you can tell me that, yet.  But in the interim,

         21  we will certainly work with you to make this as

         22  easily implemented  as possible.

         23                 MS. GOKALDAS:  I want to make a

         24  couple of comments:

         25                 Number one,  DCAS was designated as
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          2  the lead agency to deal with recyclable procurement,

          3  recycled product procurement.  And part of the

          4  reason for that is it is considered a bit of a

          5  clearing house for this type of information.

          6  Whether it has the resources to do that or not is

          7  another questions.

          8                 As you saw yourself, there is

          9  actually no enforcement of the State law requiring,

         10  limiting purchases of hardwood tropical trees at

         11  this point in time.  So, you know, that alone is - -

         12                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  At least that

         13  is what she said.  She did not say that there was a

         14  monitoring in DCAS.  I don't know if that is, in

         15  fact, a fact.  But I know that the Mayor's

         16  Legislative Affairs Office is going to find that

         17  out, I am sure.  Because I would think that we would

         18  need to monitor the laws that are in place to ensure

         19  compliance with the law.

         20                 MS. GOKALDAS:  Exactly.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  If not, I mean,

         22  we expect self- compliance, but we know that many

         23  people, you know, thinks it is cheaper or easier not

         24  to comply with the law, so they try to get away with

         25  noncompliance.  So we have to have a monitoring
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          2  system in place to ensure that it is.  I'm sorry.

          3                 MS. GOKALDAS:  No, by all means.  And

          4  there is, you know, two other points that I thought

          5  were, you know, should be brought up again.  One is

          6  the definition of wood product, and I think that we

          7  certainly can work to make that definition more

          8  clear, and you know, work with DCAS on what that

          9  means.

         10                 The second is the issue of it being

         11  impossible versus difficult.  Which is, you know,

         12  everything that is worthwhile is difficult to do.

         13  And in terms of actually finding out from

         14  distributors where there wood comes from, I believe

         15  DCAS has the authority to do that, we can do more

         16  investigation on that.  But there should be, they

         17  should have the authority to be able to ask the

         18  distributors to give that kind of information to

         19  them.  And in particular agencies like the Home

         20  Depot, or you know, private entities, businesses, it

         21  is in their best interest as well to kind of, to

         22  gather that type of information, as well.

         23                 In fact, Home Depot, at this point in

         24  time, is doing some due diligence work on its wood

         25  purchases.  And so if a place, if an organization,
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          2  or if a private entity like Home Depot can do it,

          3  certainly the City of New York has a responsibility

          4  to ask places like Home Depot about that

          5  information, as well.

          6                 MR. CHENAULT:  Can I also mention,

          7  Home Depot has made a commitment to try to stock as

          8  much Forest Stewardship Council wood as possible.

          9  And you can ask them, we want FSC wood, and they

         10  will tell you, and they will give it to you as FSC

         11  wood.  So I don't see a problem there.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Was I, I am

         13  trying to assess whether or not, I try not to play

         14  hard ball, and I try to be reasonable.  In a

         15  scenario if you were a lumber supplier, and let's

         16  assume that I'm the Parks Department, and rather

         17  than purchasing huge shipments I go to you to supply

         18  small amounts. But if I was 15 percent of your

         19  business, and if I asked for this additional

         20  requirement, do you think that you as a lumber

         21  supplier would adhere to my request for that

         22  additional information, and risk losing that 15

         23  percent of your business?

         24                 MS. GOKALDAS:  By all means, I mean I

         25  would comply.  But the other piece of that is a lot
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          2  of wood companies know what type of wood they are

          3  selling, because it is an issue of function, it is

          4  an issue of product specification, you have to know

          5  the species at the very least.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  At the very

          7  least.

          8                 MS. GOKALDAS:  Yes.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Okay.

         10                 MS. GOKALDAS:  Because certain woods

         11  are useful for certain types of products, and

         12  certain woods are not.  In terms of the origin of

         13  the wood, I am not too sure how much information of

         14  that nature already exists.  I would imagine some,

         15  and I don't know how difficult that is to attain.

         16  But, you know, that is what this law is being

         17  created for.

         18                 MR. CHENAULT:  Yes, the thing is that

         19  there is a lot of illegal logging out there, and

         20  they are hiding the source of where this comes from.

         21    They are laundering it, they are using it to buy

         22  arms, and so they are trying to hide this

         23  information.

         24                 But what you said and what you

         25  outlined as a modest operandi that you will ask this

                                                            69

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONTRACTS

          2  question and mark unknown. This will give us

          3  information that maybe there is something wrong with

          4  this purchasing,  this chain of custody.  So it

          5  would be very valuable to know even that you don't

          6  know.  But we are asking for due diligence and try

          7  to get the information.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  How beneficial,

          9  if any, would passing this Intro. Into law, how

         10  would this, if at all, benefit the people of New

         11  York City?

         12                 MR. CHENAULT:  Okay, I will speak to

         13  that.  We need to know, we cannot have ethical

         14  procurement, we cannot have procurement as

         15  protecting human rights and environmental standards

         16  without knowledge of the species, where it comes

         17  from as best possible, and whether it is certified

         18  by a credible certification program.

         19                 We have to take the next step, this

         20  is just information gathering, and that is an

         21  important first step.  It is useful in itself in

         22  that it will bring the attention of the facts to

         23  decision- makers and the public.  But then the

         24  information, of course, has to be used to reform the

         25  City's procurement practices.  And that is where it

                                                            70

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONTRACTS

          2  will become valuable.

          3                 It will be valuable in terms of,

          4  first, just for the ethical standards.  The City

          5  doesn't want to be complacent in ecological

          6  destruction, human rights abuses, I know that, they

          7  have taken several stands in the past where they

          8  have taken an ethical standard, one.

          9                 Two, a lot of our, for example our

         10  State forests, are all Forest Stewardship Council

         11  certified.  So we could help promote local, or at

         12  least more local industries and sustainable forestry

         13  that way.  Recycled plastic lumber is also produced

         14  locally, and it could provide economic benefits.

         15                 So there is an economic benefit, and

         16  there is, of course, the ethical standards that I am

         17  sure the Council and the public would support.  And

         18  for those reasons, those are just two reasons to

         19  support the bill.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Well any

         21  questions or comments from my colleagues?  Doctor

         22  Stewart.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  You heard

         24  what DCAS had said about being very low down on the

         25  chain of command in terms of getting or knowing
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          2  where the product came from.  And I am trying to

          3  understand what percentage of wood product does the

          4  City purchase on the scope of, in the scheme of

          5  things?

          6                 MR. CHENAULT:  Well some of it is the

          7  contractors are given the responsibility to get the

          8  vendor, that is my understanding.  And some of it, I

          9  guess is purchased directly by the City.  I am not

         10  clear on all of that, or what percentage it is.  But

         11  the bill does, I believe, handle the contractors

         12  also, as the bill reads.  So, it will be a

         13  combination, it says, "a report that the details of

         14  the purchase and use of wood products by City

         15  agencies or in fulfillment of contracts with the

         16  City agencies,"  so I think some of the reporting,

         17  it will be collected by the City agencies, but the

         18  contractor will be the one going out and looking for

         19  the source of wood.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  I understand

         21  that.  But there is even further than that.  I am

         22  trying to figure out the City purchases a lot of end

         23  products.  In other words, they purchase chairs and

         24  tables and desks, et cetera, which might be

         25  partially wood product.
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          2                 MR. CHENAULT:  Right.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  What I am

          4  trying to get at, are you saying that those

          5  products, how and when will they be able to

          6  determine, well these products might have been

          7  partly from wood products that are from areas or

          8  sources that we cannot determine.  Because based on

          9  the bill, I don't see how we can get down to that

         10  point, where just the back of the chair is wood, or

         11  the legs of a table is wood, the rest is maybe

         12  metal, or plastic, or something like that.  I am

         13  trying to figure out, you are saying that that

         14  information must be gathered?

         15                 MR. CHENAULT:  Well let me just say

         16  two things. First of all, there are much larger

         17  orders of wood out there.  If you could look at this

         18  Coney Island Boardwalk, that is a lot of wood, and

         19  that is Ipe, that is rain forest wood from the

         20  Amazon. So that is a huge order of wood, and they

         21  specify the species.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  Right, I

         23  understand that.

         24                 MR. CHENAULT:  So those orders, you

         25  know, that is a huge amount of wood that the City is

                                                            73

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONTRACTS

          2  using and purchasing.

          3                 Now as far as furniture or just part

          4  of the furniture is wood, I think when the contract

          5  goes out for some benches or for some furniture,

          6  often, again, they will specify what specific wood

          7  would be a component of that furniture.  So they

          8  would have some information on that.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  A lot of

         10  times - -

         11                 MR. CHENAULT:  Maybe not always.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: - -  the type

         13  of wood is not specified.  A lot of times, it is

         14  just looking at a catalog and seeing some furniture,

         15  and you maybe want 100 chairs or 50 chairs.  And

         16  that chair may have part of it is wood.  And we are

         17  not to sure the source of that wood.

         18                 And I am asking the question, does

         19  this bill require that they verify that this wood

         20  might be coming from a source that is not desirable?

         21                 MR. CHENAULT:  I think we need to

         22  look at that.  I know, see I remember what the

         23  Intro. No. 108, which we worked with you over the

         24  years on, which mainly had to do with actually

         25  revision in the procurement policy.  It only covered
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          2  quite large purchases, it wasn't all wood purchases.

          3    I am not sure what level of wood purchase this

          4  bill refers to.

          5                 We can discuss that with you, and we

          6  would like to work with you on that.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  Well based

          8  on the definition I would like that to be clarified.

          9    Because it is when we look at the definition and

         10  stating, basically, from that definition, which my

         11  colleague had looked at, number 7, I think that

         12  should be cleared up a little bit more.  Because if

         13  you start looking at, remember DCAS is like the end

         14  from the chain of command.  And the wood might have

         15  been purchased from some company in the Amazon and

         16  gone to let's say China to make the chairs, and then

         17  been sold to some place in Canada, which we then

         18  bought it from Canada and bring it to some company.

         19  So it is a whole chain of command here, and not

         20  knowing exactly that the wood came from the Amazon.

         21                 MR. CHENAULT:  Okay.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  So I am just

         23  trying to look at that, and it might be an area

         24  where it is not desirable for us to, because of the

         25  rain forest problem that they have in terms of not
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          2  reforesting the area, not doing the right thing. And

          3  we don't want to buy wood from folks who are not

          4  doing the right thing.

          5                 MR. CHENAULT:  Well --

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  The fact is

          7  getting that information might be somewhat difficult

          8  because we don't, there is no way you can tell this

          9  wood, by just looking at it and say it came from the

         10  Amazon or from the Middle East.

         11                 MR. CHENAULT:  Well we would like to

         12  work with you over the coming weeks to iron that

         13  out, and I think, I don't think, we want this to

         14  cover, the intention is for it to cover every

         15  single, however small, purchase of wood or building

         16  materials.  Certainly, that was not the intention in

         17  Intro. No. 108, what we called the Good Wood Bill.

         18  So maybe we can work together on that.

         19                 We want to make this as practical as

         20  possible, and we will try to get people in our

         21  organizations to work with you on that.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  Do you know

         23  if any State, you know, the State Law that deals

         24  with the hardwood, do you know if there are any

         25  State policing being done, directly, not just with
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          2  saying that this is a law, and these companies have

          3  to do it, and they are trying to follow it as much

          4  as possible?

          5                 MR. CHENAULT:  I am not aware of it.

          6  To be honest with you, I am a volunteer, and I have

          7  not had time to police the State.  But I will say,

          8  as I think you all know, the list of species is

          9  incomplete.  So some of the wood most often commonly

         10  used by the City and other cities around the State,

         11  the species that they are actually using are not on

         12  that list.  So it hasn't had much effect as far as I

         13  know.

         14                 I haven't heard of anybody using this

         15  bill, and maybe I am just not aware of it, but I

         16  haven't heard of anybody using this bill to say, no,

         17  you cannot use that rain forest wood, I haven't

         18  heard it.  So I am not sure, I don't know how it is

         19  being enforced.  And as I said, I am limited in my

         20  time, I am a volunteer.

         21                 But, and also, so there are efforts

         22  though to complete that list, and there are also

         23  talk of efforts to define what sustainably managed

         24  forest is, and possibly define it according to the

         25  standards that were in the Good Wood Bill that you
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          2  considered earlier.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  All right,

          4  thank you.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Thank you.  Any

          6  other questions or comments from my colleagues?

          7                 I want to thank you both for coming

          8  in and giving testimony.  I will be looking forward

          9  to working with you, and with the Mayor's Office in

         10  order to come up with a compromised bill.  Thank you

         11  very much.

         12                 Robert, any other point of business?

         13  At this point in time, this hearing is adjourned.

         14                 (Hearing adjourned at 11:45 a.m.)
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